
RECREATION COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

APRIL 28, 2016 

 

Present: Mr. Kevin Bodnar, Vice Chairman 

Mr. Michael Breslin 

   Mrs. Jan McCabe  

   Mrs. Maureen McEntee 

  Mrs. Maggie Slawinski 

  Mr. Gerard Sittmann, Chairman 

           Mr. Jake Cahill (arrived @ 7:34PM) 

 

Present: Karleen Leahey, Recreation Director 

Councilwoman Laurie Fu  

      

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

Mr. Sittmann called the meeting to order.  He stated that adequate 

notice of this meeting has been posted and published in accordance with 

Chapter 231 of the Public Law of 1975, “Open Public Meetings Act.” 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Mr. Sittmann requested that all members review the minutes of the 

Commission’s March 24, 2016 Regular Meeting.   

  

Mrs. Slawinski moved that the minutes of the March 24, 2016 meeting 

be approved, seconded by Mr. Bodnar.  Voice vote.  All in favor,   Motion 

carried.   



 

RECREATION DIRECTOR’S REPORT – APRIL 2016 

Mrs. Leahey presented her report. 

 

Mrs. Leahey advised that Susan has had her baby and her name is Julia 

Marie Carey-Fitzsimmons.   

 

Mrs. Slawinski asked if the Borough Clerk was advised of this. 

 

Mrs. Leahey did notified the Borough Clerk. 

 

Plains Talk – Mrs. Leahey advised that there are two pages in this 

publication together with several photos.  She provided information as to 

what text information is on these two pages, such as the Senior Picnic, 

the Pool, Family Day and Fireworks and other upcoming events for the 

summer months.  

 

APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS       

Mrs. Slawinski moved that the vouchers as presented be approved, 

seconded by Mrs. McCabe.  Voice vote.  All in favor.  Motion carried. 

 

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

Mr. Sittmann opened the meeting to the public to speak on matters other 

than those on the agenda.   

 

Mr. Tom Bergeron, 4 Druetzler Drive, Morris Plains, introduced himself to 

the Committee members and all others present at this meeting.  He 

advised he was at this meeting on behalf of the Morris Plains Little 

League.  He advised that he believes there are approximately 100 teams 

in Morris Plains.  He added some relevant facts relating to his years of 

experience with the Little League organization.   

 



Mr. Bergeron stated that he believes he has been asked to attend this 

meeting in conjunction with “numbers”.   

 

Mr. Sittmann stated that it relates to letters recently sent to Commission 

members in connection with various issues about Little League; for 

example, breaking up of teams and  age groups.  He requested that Mr. 

Bergeron provide an overview of what has been taking place and what 

the details of these issues are and why. 

 

Mr. Bergeron advised there are 184 baseball players, up from 153 

players in 2015 (a 19% - 20% increase).  Softball players number 59 in 

2016 versus 50 in 2015 (an 18% increase).  Overall, the statistics are 

that they went from 203 players in 2015 to 243 players in 2016 which 

represents a participation increase of 19%.    He advised they have two 

teams in majors which was a difficult situation.  This year in majors there 

were 15 or 16 majors-level participants.   These are difficult numbers 

because it is too much for one team and not enough for two.   He 

provided information regarding AAA players.  He explained how the 

numbers began to change due to several AAA players being willing to 

assist as needed and also two new participants moved into the Borough.  

They “begged” them to play and the number increased to 20.  Also, two 

players from Morristown asked if they could join the Morris Plains league, 

and their request was approved.  Now the number was 22, allowing for 

two teams of 11 players each.  But, one player was injured and as a 

result one team is down to 10 players.        

 

Continuing, Mr. Bergeron advised that all are having fun and that they 

are doing well.  AAA baseball numbers have been great, and there have 

been some late registrants.   He believes there are 30 on AAA and 26 on 

AA.  He made reference to the fact that there are a small number of 10-

year-old boys in the Borough which impacts those who can play in AAA.  

Single A is up to 30; good success occurred as the result of a summer 



program last year.   T-Ball is up to 28 and Clinic is up to 39 boys, the 

highest number they have had in quite a long time which help nurture 

more boys for future teams.   

 

As far as softball, Mr. Bergeron stated the numbers are even better.  

There are 59 players for 2016.  The combined numbers for T-Ball plus 

Clinic is 20 players, a fantastic number.  AA has 20 players which is two 

teams.  AAA has 19 players.  For a second year there is no majors team.  

There was a juniors team in 2015, but there is none this year.  The AAA 

teams are doing well.    One reason why there is no majors team is that 

only eight girls signed up for majors, and three were 10 years old.  The 

older girls are playing with the Morristown Nationals.  He also provided 

commentary regarding the 10 year olds playing on majors teams, some 

of whom were anxious to play in the majors; none of the surrounding 

municipalities were willing to take 10 year olds to play in the majors.  

Ten year olds can play in the majors in the Borough.   He continued to 

provide additional information regarding 10 year olds playing on majors 

teams.  He stated they “knew this situation was coming”.     

 

Mr. Bergeron advised that on October 22, 2015 he, Brian and Dave 

Marcantonio discussed what the numbers were because some people 

were talking about merging.  At this meeting it was determined that 

there would not be enough girls to create a majors team.    In December 

15, 2015 notification was sent to those who signed up, which is  

something that is usually done in January, and he explained why.  The 

notification advised that there might be a team of this level (majors) 

depending on the interest shown.   He provided information on the 

efforts that were made to interest more girls in this level of softball play, 

but there was no success in convincing more girls to play at this level.   

Notification was ultimately provided that for the second year in a row 

there would be no majors softball team.   He explained he has been 

president for five years and attempted to have someone else take over 



this position.  After talking with others, he was told that all he would 

need to do was give the Opening Day speech, deal with parents and stay 

in contact with the Recreation Commission and attend meetings as 

needed.   

 

Mr. Bergeron spoke about correspondence he received on March 4, 2016 

from a resident who was disappointed that there would not be a majors 

softball team; he read this correspondence out loud.  He also 

commented on matters regarding the relationship between the various 

teams and the Little League Board.  He believes the Board has always 

been supportive of the teams and agrees to requests as much as 

realistically possible.  He responded to the March 4, 2016 

correspondence with 27 minutes of its receipt; he asked to be informed 

of the 10 players referenced in the original e-mail.   

 

Cross discussion among Mr. Bergeron and various Commission members.   

 

Mr. Sittmann stated that the Commission is not challenging Mr. 

Bergeron.   

 

Mr. Bergeron thanked the Commission for its time and consideration, 

stating he had nothing further to discuss. 

 

Mr. Ken Wilbur, 16 Cutler Road, Morris Plains, stated he is a member of 

the Morris Plains Little League Board.  He is also an assistant softball 

coach and his daughter plays on the team.  He is a new member of the 

Board and joined to ensure his daughter would have an opportunity to 

play softball in the Borough and with her friends.  He attempted to make 

sure there would be as many girls and as many teams as possible.  He 

provided information on the attempts to encourage girls to play softball; 

they even “hijacked” the soccer since so many children played soccer at 

one time or another.  He also talked with parents to determine why their 



daughters had not signed up for softball.   There was an on-going 

dialogue throughout the process.   Mr. Jose Vega was also recruited to 

reach out to a variety of people for help in identifying more potential 

players.  He wants his daughter to enjoy a good experience.   He 

referred to other letters/e-mails that have been sent to elected officials in 

the Borough.   The girls he is coaching are very willing players, subbing 

for each other as necessary, and they love the sport.  He provided 

examples of how these girls are dedicated to their sport.     These young 

girls are great ambassadors for the Borough.   

 

Mr. Brian Volker, 50 Hawthorne Avenue, Morris Plains, stated this is the 

first year he has done this.  Everyone involved is really trying to make 

this a successful program.   

 

Mr. Sittmann stated the Commission wants to hear facts and not any 

rumors that may be talked about in the community at large.  The 

Commission is definitely a supporter/sponsor of softball in the Borough, 

and no one is attacking anyone.  

 

Cross discussion among various members of the public and the 

Commission members.  

 

Councilwoman Fu asked if those who are Majors eligible can play in other 

municipalities. 

 

Mr. Volker stated that two are currently playing in Morristown.   

 

Councilwoman Fu asked if the Borough’s program accepts players from 

other municipalities. 

Mr. Volker responded that anyone is able to sign up for the Borough’s 

Little League.    

 



Cross discussion about playing with the Morristown Nationals, including 

that the Borough’s Little League program is hoping to stop this trend.   

 

Mr. Sittmann suggested to the Little League representatives that they 

consider putting a “wish list” together since there may be some funding 

coming.   

 

One of the Little League representative commented on some possible 

“wish list” items already on the list.  These included a field upgrade(s), 

using a special kind of dirt that dries very, very quickly – Rockaway uses 

this type of dirt and Morristown Nationals recently installed a Juniors field 

using this dirt, and a few additional items/issues that were briefly 

discussed.    It was also suggested that contact be made with the vo-

tech school’s groundskeeper, who apparently is excellent, and who has 

expressed interest in trying to help resolve a drainage type problem at 

one of the fields.  

 

Mr. Sittmann stated that any drainage work should not be planned 

during the season.   

 

The subject of the 50/70 softball field(s) and issues relating to drainage 

were raised and discussed.   

 

Mrs. Leahey continued with Recreation Director's Report. 

 

Mrs. Leahey spoke about the registration for the summer camp 

enhancements.  Several Enhancement Programs are already at their 

maximum enrollment. 

 

Mrs. Leahey went over the vouchers prepared and returned for June 25, 

2016 "Family Day". 

 



Mrs. Leahey and Camp Director Susan Carey interviewed all new 

applicants for Summer Counselor positions.  Mrs. Leahey hopes to 

prepare and submit a Consent Calendar for all Summer Counselors 

positions to the Town Council for consideration at their May 5, 2016 

Meeting.  

 

VOUCHERS   

Mrs. Slawinski moved that the vouchers as presented be approved, 

seconded by Mr. Bodnar.  Voice vote.  All in favor.  Motion carried. 

 

Mr. Sittmann advised that Mr. Breslin left at 8:30 p.m. 

    

REPORT OF COUNCILWOMAN FU 

Councilwoman Fu reminded that on this coming Saturday there will be a 

drug take-back event at Stop & Shop from 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.  She 

also advised that the Affordable Housing applications are now available 

for pick-up or to access on the website.  She provided brief updates on 

the Arbor Terrace and Mack-Cali projects.   

 

Councilwoman Fu advised of a budget issue relating to the 2015 

fireworks budget allocation ($20,800).  This amount should have been 

$21,800; she is uncertain how this would have happened.  This year 

another $300 was requested which results in a total increase of $1,300.  

The right number now will be $22,100.  She also advised of a 

contribution that will be made to the Community Band.   

 

Lastly, Councilwoman Fu advised of the Everbridge program offered by 

the County.   This is similar to another type of emergency mass 

notification program.  Information has been published in Plains Talk 

asking that residents consider signing up for Everbridge.   She explained 

that there are a variety of uses for this system that do not involve any 



kind of emergency mass notifications and that might be useful for the 

Recreation Commission to make use of.       

 

NEW BUSINESS 

None. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

None. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Mr. Sittmann read the necessary Resolution to allow the Commission to 

go into closed session to discuss personnel matters. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, Mrs. McCabe moved the regular 

meeting be adjourned, seconded by Mrs. Slawinski.  Voice vote.  All in 

favor.   Motion carried. 

 

 

       Karleen Leahey 

       Commission Secretary 

 

Maureen Sullivan 

Recording Secretary 

 

 

    

 

    

      

  


